GRAND RAPIDS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Thursday, July 28, 2016 4:00pm Grand Rapids City Hall

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that a regular meeting of the Grand Rapids Economic Development Authority will be held in Conference Room 2A in the Grand Rapids City Hall, 420 North Pokegama Avenue, in Grand Rapids, Minnesota on Thursday, July 28, 2016 at 4:00pm.

AGENDA

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Call of Roll
- 3. Setting of the Regular Agenda *This is an opportunity to approve the regular agenda as presented or add/delete by a majority vote of the Commissioners present an agenda item.*
- 4. Approval of minutes from the July 14, 2016 regular meeting
- 5. Consider approval of claims
- 6. Consider awarding a proposal for professional services, submitted by Braun Intertec for the preparation of an updated Phase 1 Environmental Report for the Block 20/21 site.
- 7. Consider awarding a proposal for professional services, submitted by SEH for the preparation of an ALTA survey of the Block 20/21 site.
- 8. Updates:
 - a.
- 9. Adjourn

GREDA Members/terms:

Dale Christy -12/31/16 (with council term) Rick Blake-12/31/18 (with council term) Mike Przytarski -3/1/21Cory Jackson -3/1/17Mike Stefan -3/1/18Chris Lynch -3/1/19Sholom Blake -3/1/19

GRAND RAPIDS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING THURSDAY, JULY 14, 2016 4:00 P.M. GRAND RAPIDS CITY HALL – CONFERENCE ROOM 2A 420 NORTH POKEGAMA AVE., GRAND RAPIDS, MINNESOTA

CALL TO ORDER: Pursuant to due notice and call thereof, a Regular Meeting of the Grand Rapids Economic Development Authority (GREDA) was called to order on Thursday, July 14, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. in Conference Room 2A of City Hall, 420 North Pokegama Avenue, Grand Rapids, Minnesota.

CALL OF ROLL: On a Call of Roll the following members were present: Commissioners: Sholom Blake, Dale Christy, Rick Blake, Cory Jackson, Mike Przytarski. Absent: Michael Stefan, Chris Lynch.

SETTING OF REGULAR AGENDA: Approved without addition.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER CHRISTY, SECOND BY COMMISSIONER JACKSON TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 23, 2016 REGULAR MEETING. The following voted in favor thereof: R. Blake, Jackson, S. Blake, Christy, Przytarski. Opposed: None, passed ananimously.

APPROVAL OF CLAIMS:



MOTION BY COMMISSIONER LYNCH, SECOND BY COMMISSIONER STEFAN TO APPROVE CLAIMS IN THE AMOUNT OF \$35,058.34.

Itasca County Farm Service \$35,000 P.U.C. \$58.34

The following voted in favor thereof: Jackson, R. Blake, S. Blake, Christy, Przytarski. Opposed: None, passed unanimously.

Commissioner Lynch joined the meeting at 4:05 p.m.

<u>Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting a resolution approving a purchase and development contract with Grand Rapids Hotel Partners LLC.</u>

President Blake stated the public hearing scheduled was to consider adopting a resolution approving a purchase and development contract with Grand Rapids Hotel Partners LLC. Recorder Groom noted that all required notices, according to law, have been met.

Community Development Director Mattei provided a power point outlining the history of the project.

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER R. BLAKE, SECOND BY COMMISSIONER CHRISTY TO OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING. The following voted in favor thereof: R. Blake, Christy, Przytarski, Jackson, S.Blake, Lynch. Opposed: None, passed unanimously. There was no public comment.

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER JACKSON, SECOND BY COMMISSIONER LYNCH TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING. The following voted in favor thereof: R. Blake, Jackson, S. Blake, Christy, Lynch, Przytarski. Opposed: None, passed unanimously.

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER LYNCH, SECOND BY COMMISSIONER CHRISTY TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 16-03 APPROVING A PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT WITH GRAND RAPIDS HOTEL PARTNERS LLC. The following voted in favor thereof: Przytarski, Lynch, Christy, S. Blake, Jackson, R. Blake. Opposed: None, passed unanimously.

Review and discuss A + B Productions, Gems of Itasca pop-up space proposal.

A + B Productions is asking the GREDA to donate a space at Central School for three months to maximize exposure of the short film series Gems of Itasca. Mr. Mattei received and email from Megan Christianson, Executive Director of VGR with concerns regarding giving space at a discounted rate, she would like them to apply for the Artists in Residency space on the 3^{rd} floor. The Commissioners discussed the issue of precedent and they decided not to take any action.

Benjamin Braff of A + B Productions addressed the GREDA and provided background on the Gems of Itasca series. Mr. Braff would like the GREDA to consider a monetary donation rather than the space a Central School.

Updates:



Swan Machine- The City Council passed a resolution approving an application to DEED for the job creation fund that is available to manufacturing companies. They have met with SEH to work on the final design and layout of the 13,000 square foot building.

There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 4:42 p.m.

Respectfully submitted:

Aurimy Groom, Recorder

EDA BILL LIST - JULY 28, 2016 DATE: 07/25/2016 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS PAGE: 1 TIME: 10:27:34 ID: AP443000.CGR DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 07/28/2016 VENDOR # NAME AMOUNT DUE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 0718010 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS 1,650.00 TOTAL 1,650.00 EDA - CAPITAL PROJECTS MISCELLANEOUS PROJECT 0718010 CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS 184.00 TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS PROJECT 184.00 DOWNTOWN REDVELPMNT BLK 18-21 1105530 KENNEDY & GRAVEN 1,381.25 TOTAL DOWNTOWN REDVELPMNT BLK 18-21 1,381.25 AIRPORT SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARKS 1900225 SEH-RCM 854.00 TOTAL AIRPORT SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARKS 854.00 DEED DEVELOPMENT PROGAMS 0920051 ITASCA COUNTY H.R.A. 18,321.57 TOTAL DEED DEVELOPMENT PROGAMS 18,321.57 TOTAL UNPAID TO BE APPROVED IN THE SUM OF: \$ 22,390.82 CHECKS ISSUED-PRIOR APPROVAL PRIOR APPROVAL 2209665 VISA 60.00 TOTAL PRIOR APPROVAL ALLOWED IN THE SUM OF: \$ 60.00 TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS 22,450.82



July 19, 2016

Proposal QTB042374

Mr. Robert Mattei City of Grand Rapids 420 North Pokegama Avenue Grand Rapids, MN 55744

Re: Proposal to Conduct a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment
Vacant Parcel (adjacent to the east of Glorvigen Building)
2nd Street Northeast and 3rd Avenue Northeast
Grand Rapids, Minnesota

Dear Mr. Mattei:

Braun Intertec Corporation is pleased to present this proposal to conduct a phase I environmental site assessment (ESA) of the referenced site. The objective of a Phase I ESA is to evaluate the site for indications of recognized environmental conditions and to assist in satisfying All Appropriate Inquiries (AAI) criteria and requirements. The Phase I ESA will be conducted in general conformance with the scope and limitations of ASTM International Practice E 1527-13 (ASTM Practice E 1527-13) and 40 CFR Part 312.

Scope of Services

Site History Review

The Phase I ESA will summarize reasonably ascertainable information pertaining to former and current land-use activities at the site. Our summary will include a review of aerial photographs, fire insurance atlases, city directories, property tax files, building records, topographic maps, and/or other historical documents to satisfy the historical-use requirements of the ASTM Practice E 1527-13 and 40 CFR Part 312.

Regulatory Information Review

We will request that a national regulatory information vendor, such as Environmental Data Resources, Inc., conduct a limited file evaluation of the site. If readily available and practically reviewable, the file evaluation will include, at a minimum, a review of the following databases within the corresponding approximate minimum search distance indicated in the ASTM Practice E 1527-13 and 40 CFR Part 312:

- Federal National Priorities List (NPL)
- Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information System (CERCLIS)
- Federal Institutional and Engineering Controls
- Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Transport, Storage and Disposal (TSD) facilities
- Federal RCRA TSD facilities that have received RCRA corrective action activities
- Federal RCRA generators

City of Grand Rapids Proposal QTB042374 July 19, 2016 Page 2

- Federal Emergency Response Notification (ERNS) sites
- State NPL and CERCLIS equivalents
- State landfill and/or solid waste disposal sites
- State Voluntary cleanup programs
- State leaking underground and aboveground storage tank (LUST/LAST) sites
- State registered underground and aboveground storage tank (UST/AST) sites
- State Brownfield programs
- State Institutional and Engineering Controls
- State spills list
- Environmental Liens

We will review and summarize this information, and comment on known and potential environmental hazards that may impact the site. The scope of work does not include a detailed review of file information of identified facilities listed on the regulatory databases. However, if in our opinion a file review is warranted to evaluate the existence of a recognized environmental condition, historical recognized environmental condition, controlled recognized environmental condition, or a *de minimis* condition, we will contact you to discuss expanding the assessment to include a file review and the associated costs.

Site Reconnaissance and Interviews

The Phase I ESA will include a reconnaissance of the site. During the reconnaissance we will note, if observed, the type of vegetation, exposed soils, open excavations or depressions, and site topography. Visible indications of underground and aboveground storage tanks, dumping, spills of petroleum and chemicals, and other obvious potential sources of contamination will be noted. In addition, we will conduct interviews with site representatives and governmental officials regarding past and current land-use activities.

Results and Reporting

A draft Phase I ESA report will be sent to you for review and comment. The Phase I ESA report will remain in draft status until we are notified by you to proceed with issuance of the final Phase I ESA report.

If we encounter indications of existing or potential sources of contamination during our assessment, we will notify you to discuss how the assessment may proceed. You may wish to discontinue the Phase I ESA or you may consider expanding the assessment to further evaluate the contamination sources that are identified. If contamination at the site is confirmed, the property owner may be required to notify proper governmental authorities.

User-Provided Information

As part of Phase I ESA, the "User" should provide available information to Braun Intertec as the Environmental Professional to help identify the possibility of recognized environmental conditions in connection with the Site. A "User" is the party seeking to use ASTM Practice E 1527-13 to complete an environmental site assessment and may include, without limitation, a potential purchaser, tenant or owner of the property, a lender, or a property manager.

The attached User questionnaire should be completed in its entirety by the User(s) and returned with the signed authorization. If multiple Users are requesting reliance on the Phase I ESA, please provide us with a questionnaire completed by each of the appropriate entities.



City of Grand Rapids Proposal QTB042374 July 19, 2016 Page 3

Assessment Limitations

Upon completion of the Phase I ESA, Braun Intertec does not guarantee qualification for Landowner Liability Protections (LLP). Our proposed scope of work is consistent with "good commercial and customary practices" (as defined by ASTM Practice E 1527-13) conducted in an effort to evaluate recognized environmental conditions at a site in this area.

The assessment will not include vapor encroachment screening as defined in ASTM Practice E2600-10, *Standard Guide for Vapor Encroachment Screening on Property Involved in Real Estate Transactions*. ASTM Practice E2600-10 is not a requirement or component of AAI, and its results are not determinative of whether hazardous substances from a release are or may be present at the property for the sake of AAI or ASTM E1527-13. However, vapors present or likely present from hazardous substances or petroleum products will be considered no differently than hazardous substances or petroleum products will be considered no differently than hazardous substances or petroleum products present or likely present as a result of a release to the environment. Therefore, while a vapor encroachment screening per the ASTM Practice E2600-10 standard will not be conducted as part of this proposal, the potential for impacts to the property from vapor migration that is a result of a release of hazardous substances and/or petroleum products to the environment will be considered when assessing for the presence of a recognized environmental condition as defined by ASTM E1527-13.

Cost

The lump-sum cost for the tasks described in this proposal is as follows.

Service Description	Lump Sum Cost
Phase I Environmental Site Assessment	\$2,000

Schedule

We anticipate the draft Phase I ESA report will be completed within 2-3 weeks from the date of your written authorization. The Phase I ESA report will remain in draft status until we are notified by you to proceed with issuance of the final Phase I ESA report.

General Remarks

Braun Intertec appreciates the opportunity to present this proposal to you. It is being sent in an electronic version *only*. A hard copy of the proposal will be supplied upon request. *Please return a signed copy of the proposal, the completed User Questionnaire, and the completed Client Information Request Form, in their entirety.*

The proposed fee is based on the scope of services described and the assumption that our services will be authorized within 30 days and that others will not delay us beyond our proposed schedule.



City of Grand Rapids Proposal QTB042374 July 19, 2016 Page 4

We include the Braun Intertec General Conditions, which provide additional terms and are a part of our agreement.

We appreciate the opportunity to provide professional services for you on this project. If you have questions regarding the contents of this proposal, please call Ted Hubbes at 218.263.8869.

Sincerely,

BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION

Ted R. Hubbes, PG, CHMM Senior Scientist/Associate Principal

Horna -Jack M. -

Mark W. Gothard, PE Principal

Attachments: General Conditions – Phase I Assessments (7-18-2016) Client Information Request Form ASTM Practice E 1527-13 User questionnaire

The proposal is accepted, and you are authorized to proceed.

Authorizer's Firm

Authorizer's Signature

Authorizer's Name (please print or type)

Authorizer's Title

Date



€

Section 1: Agreement

1.1 Our agreement with you consists of these General Conditions and the accompanying written proposal or authorization ("Agreement"). This Agreement is the entire agreement between you and us. It supersedes prior agreements. It may be modified only in a writing signed by us, making specific reference to the provision modified.

1.2 The words "you," "we," "us," and "our" include officers, employees, and subcontractors.

1.3 In the event you use a purchase order or other documentation to authorize our scope of work ("Services"), any conflicting or additional terms are not part of this Agreement. Directing us to start work prior to execution of this Agreement constitutes your acceptance. If, however, mutually acceptable terms cannot be established, we have the right to terminate this Agreement without liability to you or others, and you will compensate us for costs and expenses incurred up to the time of termination.

Section 2: Our Responsibilities

2.1 We will provide Services specifically described in this Agreement. You agree that we are not responsible for services that are not expressly included in this Agreement. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, our findings will be written and you may not rely on oral statements.

2.2 In performing our professional services, we will use that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised under similar circumstances by reputable members of our profession practicing in the same locality. If you direct us to deviate from our recommended procedures, you agree to hold us harmless from claims, damages, and expenses arising out of your direction. If during the one year period following completion of Services it is determined that the above standards have not been met and you have promptly notified us in writing of such failure, we will perform, at our cost, such corrective services as may be necessary, within the original scope in this Agreement, to remedy such deficiency. Remedies set forth in this section constitute your sole and exclusive recourse with respect to the performance or quality of Services.

2.3 We will reference our field observations and sampling to available reference points, but we will not survey, set, or check the accuracy of those points unless we accept that duty in writing. Locations of field observations or sampling described in our report or shown on our sketches are based on information provided by others or estimates made by our personnel. You agree that such dimensions, depths, or elevations are approximations unless specifically stated otherwise in the report. You accept the inherent risk that samples or observations may not be representative of things not sampled or seen and further that site conditions may vary over distance or change over time.

2.4 You will provide, at no cost to us, appropriate site safety measures as to work areas to be observed or inspected by us. Our employees are authorized by you to refuse to work under conditions that may be unsafe.

2.5 Unless a fixed fee is indicated, our price is an estimate of our project costs and expenses based on information available to us and our experience and knowledge. They may not reflect current market conditions. Such estimates are an exercise of our professional judgment and are not guaranteed or warranted. You should allow a contingency in addition to estimated costs.

Section 3: Your Responsibilities

3.1 You will provide access to the site. You agree to provide us with all plans, changes in plans, and new information as to site conditions until we have completed Services.

3.2 You agree to provide us with information in your possession or control relating to contamination at the work site.

3.3 Neither this Agreement nor the providing of Services will operate to make us an owner, operator, generator, transporter, treater, storer, or a disposal facility within the meaning of the Resource Conservation Recovery Act, as amended, or within the meaning of any other law governing the handling, treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous substances. *You agree to hold us harmless, defend, and indemnify us from any damages, claims, damages, penalties or losses resulting from the storage, removal, hauling or disposal of such substances.*

3.4 You agree to make all disclosures required by law. In the event you do not own the project site, you acknowledge that it is your duty to inform the owner of the discovery or release of contaminants at the site. You agree to hold us harmless, defend, and indemnify us from claims, damages, penalties, or losses and expenses, including attorney fees, related to failures to make disclosures, disclosures made by us that are required by law, and from claims related to the informing or failure to inform the site owner of the discovery of contaminants.

Section 4: Reports and Records

4.1 Unless you request otherwise, we will provide our report in an electronic format.

4.2 Our reports, notes, calculations, and other documents and our computer software and data are instruments of our service to you, and they remain our property. We hereby grant you a license to use the reports and related information we provide only for the related project and for the purposes disclosed to us. You may not transfer our reports to others or use them for a purpose for which they were not prepared without our written approval. You agree to indemnify, defend, and hold us harmless from claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney fees, arising out of such a transfer or use.

4.3 If you do not pay for Services in full as agreed, we may retain work not yet delivered to you and you agree to return to us all of our work that is in your possession or under your control.

INTERTEC

4.4 Electronic data, reports, photographs, samples, and other materials provided by you or others may be discarded or returned to you, at our discretion, unless within 15 days of the report date you give us written direction to store or transfer the materials at your expense.

Section 5: Compensation

5.1 You will pay for Services as stated in this Agreement. If such payment references our Schedule of Charges, the invoicing will be based upon the most current schedule. An estimated cost is not a firm figure. You agree to pay all sales taxes and other taxes based on your payment of our compensation. Our performance is subject to credit approval and payment of any specified retainer.

5.2 You will notify us of billing disputes within 15 days. You will pay undisputed portions of invoices upon receipt. You agree to pay interest on unpaid balances beginning 30 days after invoice dates at the rate of 1.5% per month, or at the maximum rate allowed by law.

5.3 If you direct us to invoice a third party, we may do so, but you agree to be responsible for our compensation unless the third party is creditworthy (in our sole opinion) and provides written acceptance of all terms of this Agreement.

5.4 Your obligation to pay for Services under this Agreement is not contingent on your ability to obtain financing, governmental or regulatory agency approval, permits, final adjudication of any lawsuit, your successful completion of any project, receipt of payment from a third party, or any other event. No retainage will be withheld.

5.5 If you do not pay us in accordance with this Agreement, you agree to reimburse our costs and expenses for collection of the moneys invoiced, including but not limited to attorney fees, staff time, and other costs and expenses.

5.6 You agree to compensate us in accordance with our Schedule of Charges if we are asked or required to respond to legal process arising out of a proceeding related to the project and as to which we are not a party.

5.7 If we are delayed by factors beyond our control, or if project conditions or the scope or amount of work changes, or if changed labor conditions result in increased costs, decreased efficiency, or delays, or if the standards or methods change, we will give you timely notice, the schedule will be extended for each day of delay, and we will be compensated for costs and expenses incurred in accordance with our Schedule of Charges.

5.8 If you fail to pay us in accordance with this Agreement, we may consider the default a total breach of this Agreement and, at our option, terminate our duties without liability to you or to others, and you will compensate us for costs and expenses incurred up to the time of termination.

5.9 In consideration of our providing insurance to cover claims made by you, you hereby waive any right to offset fees otherwise due us.

Section 6: Disputes, Damage, and Risk Allocation 6.1 Each of us will exercise good faith efforts to resolve disputes without litigation. Such efforts will include, but not be limited to, a meeting(s) attended by each party's representative(s) empowered to resolve the dispute. Before either of us commences an action against the other, disputes (except collections) will be submitted to mediation.

6.2 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, neither party hereto shall be responsible or held liable to the other for punitive, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages, or liability for loss of use, loss of business opportunity, loss of profit or revenue, loss of product or output, or business interruption.

6.3 You and we agree that any action in relation to an alleged breach of our standard of care or this Agreement shall be commenced within one year of the date of the breach or of the date of substantial completion of Services, whichever is earlier, without regard to the date the breach is discovered. Any action not brought within that one year time period shall be barred, without regard to any other limitations period set forth by law or statute. We will not be liable unless you have notified us within 30 days of the date of such breach and unless you have given us an opportunity to investigate and to recommend ways of mitigating damages. You agree not to make a claim against us unless you have provided us at least 30 days prior to the institution of any legal proceeding against us with a written certificate executed by an appropriately licensed professional specifying and certifying each and every act or omission that you contend constitutes a violation of the standard of care governing our professional services. Should you fail to meet the

conditions above, you agree to fully release us from any liability for such allegation.

6.4 For you to obtain the benefit of a fee which includes a reasonable allowance for risks, you agree that our aggregate liability for all claims will not exceed the fee paid for Services or \$50,000, whichever is greater. If you are unwilling to accept this allocation of risk, we will increase our aggregate liability to \$100,000 provided that, within 10 days of the date of this Agreement, you provide payment in an amount that will increase our fees by 10%, but not less than \$500, to compensate us for the greater risk undertaken. This increased fee is not the purchase of insurance.

6.5 You agree to indemnify us from all liability to others in excess of the risk allocation stated herein and to insure this obligation. In addition, all indemnities and limitations of liability set forth in this Agreement apply however the same may arise, whether in contract, tort, statute, equity or other theory of law, including, but not limited to, the breach of any legal duty or the fault, negligence, or strict liability of either party.

6.6 This Agreement shall be governed, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state in which our servicing office is located, without regard to its conflict of laws rules. The laws of the state of our servicing office will govern all disputes, and all claims shall be heard in the state or federal courts for that state. Each of us waives trial by jury.

6.7 No officer or employee acting within the scope of employment shall have individual liability for his or her acts or omissions, and you agree not to make a claim against individual officers or employees.

Section 7: General Indemnification

7.1 We will indemnify and hold you harmless from and against demands, damages, and expenses of others to the comparative extent they are caused by our negligent acts or omissions or those negligent acts or omissions of persons for whom we are legally responsible. You will indemnify and hold us harmless from and against demands, damages, and expenses of others to the comparative extent they are caused by your

negligent acts or omissions or those negligent acts or omissions of persons for whom you are legally responsible.

7.2 To the extent it may be necessary to indemnify either of us under Section 7.1, you and we expressly waive, in favor of the other only, any immunity or exemption from liability that exists under any worker compensation law.

7.3 You agree to indemnify us against losses and costs arising out of claims of patent or copyright infringement as to any process or system that is specified or selected by you or by others on your behalf.

Section 8: Miscellaneous Provisions

8.1 We will provide a certificate of insurance to you upon request. Any claim as an Additional Insured shall be limited to losses caused by our negligence.

8.2 You and we, for ourselves and our insurers, waive all claims and rights of subrogation for losses arising out of causes of loss covered by our respective insurance policies.

8.3 Neither of us will assign or transfer any interest, any claim, any cause of action, or any right against the other. Neither of us will assign or otherwise transfer or encumber any proceeds or expected proceeds or compensation from the project or project claims to any third person, whether directly or as collateral or otherwise.

8.4 This Agreement may be terminated early only in writing. You will compensate us for costs and expenses incurred up to the time of termination.

8.5 If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, then such provision will be modified to reflect the parties' intention. All remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

8.6 No waiver of any right or privilege of either party will occur upon such party's failure to insist on performance of any term, condition, or instruction, or failure to exercise any right or privilege or its waiver of any breach.



Environmental Site Assessment

Project/Site Name _____

So that we may serve you better, please answer the following questions concerning the project Site. If a question does not apply to the Site, answer with "NA." If you do not know the answer, reply "unknown." Please return the completed form along with one copy of the signed authorization letter.

Client Objectives

A. What is your interest in the Site? Circle all that apply.

	Buying Property	Refinancing	Selling Property	
	Development	Redevelopment	Other	
В.	For reliance pu	rposes, who would you	like to be addressed on the rep	ort?
	Name		Telephone	<u></u>
	Address		E-mail /Fax	
C.	How many copies? standard is two.	Unless othe	rwise requested, the Braun Inte	rtec
	To whom?			
D.	Is there anyone not alre	eady listed on the repor	t that requires a copy of the fina	I report?
	Name		Telephone:	
	Address		E-mail/Fax	
E.	What is the desired con	npletion date for this pr	oject?	
F.	Do you wish to receive	a verbal report before t		YES NO
G.			the final report? Once a report apply and will require that the o	
	YES NO E- r	nail/Fax		
H.	Is confidentiality reques	ted? YES NO		
	If so, to whom is it limite	ed?		

Site-Specific Information

Α.	Who is the current property owner?			
	Name	Telephone		
Β.	B. Has any previous environmental work been performed on the Site? Circle all that			
	Geotechnical/Soil Borings	Phase I/Phase II Site Assessments		
	Asbestos Evaluations	Hazardous Materials Testing		
	Unknown	No		
	Other:			
	If yes:			
	When was it performed?			
	By whom? Name and telephor	ne number?		
	Name	Telephone		
	What were the results?			
	Are report copies available?	YES NO		
C.	Where is the Site located?			
	Address			
	Legal description			
		····		
D.	Is a current Site plan available? If	so, please provide. YES NO		

E.	Who will provide access to the property and/or who is the Site contact?				
	Name: Telephone:				
F.	Are there any special concerns regarding the property?				
G.	How large is the property (total acreage)?				
H.	How is the property currently used? Circle all that apply.				
	Undeveloped Agricultural Residential Parking Lot Commercial				
	Industrial Retail Office Building Warehouse Other				
I.	What is the proposed use of the property?				
J.	Are there existing buildings on the property? YES NO				
	If yes:				
	How many buildings?				
	What year was each building built?				
	What is the total square footage of each building?				
	Are you aware of any asbestos-containing building materials in any building?				
	Give a brief description and use of each building.				
K.	What was the property used for in the past?				
L.	Has the property ever been used for dumping or landfilling in the past?				
M.	How are the adjacent properties used?				

N.	Are there currently or previously any aboveground or underground storage tanks located on the
	property?

YES NO

If yes:

Where are they located?

What is the size and contents of the tanks? (ex: 500-gallon diesel)

When were the tanks installed?

Are there any maintenance records available for the tanks?

re the tanks currently being used? YES NO

If No: When were the tank(s) closed?

Was the MPCA notified?

О.	Have hazardous chemicals or petroleum products ever been stored at the Site?	YES	NO

If yes, which ones?

P. Utilities

Gas	Electric Propane	Other		
What types of utilities	s service the Site? Circle all	that apply.		
Is it connected to city	sewer and water?		YES	NO
Are there any wells o	or septic systems formerly or	currently located at the Site	YES	NO

P:\encon-pubdata\kbergstr\forms\phIquestionnaire



ASTM Practice E 1527-13 User Questionnaire

Site:	Vacant Parcel (adjacent to the east of Glorvigen Building)
	2 nd Street Northeast and 3 rd Avenue Northeast
	Grand Rapids, Minnesota

Name:	Date:

Company:_____

In order to qualify for one of the Landowner Liability Protections (LLPs) offered by the Small Business Liability Relief and Brownfields Revitalization Act of 2002 (the "Brownfields Amendment", the User must conduct the following inquiries. The User should provide the following information to the environmental professional. Failure to conduct these inquiries could result in a determination that "all appropriate inquiries" is not complete.

(1) Environmental cleanup liens that are filed or recorded against the *property*.

The types of title reports that may disclose environmental liens include Preliminary Title Reports, Title Commitments, Condition of Title, and Title Abstracts. Chain-of-title reports will not normally disclose environmental liens. Did a search of *recorded land title records* (or judicial records where appropriate) identify any environmental cleanup liens filed or recorded against the *property* under federal, tribal, state or local law?

(2) Activity and use limitations (AULs) that are in place on the *property* or that have been filed or recorded against the *property*.

The types of title reports that may disclose AULs include Preliminary Title Reports, Title Commitments, Condition of Title, and Title Abstracts. Chain-of-title reports will not normally disclose AULs. Did a search of *recorded land title records* (or judicial records where appropriate) identify any AULs, such as *engineering controls*, land use restrictions, or *institutional controls* that are in place at the *property* and/or have been filed or recorded against the *property* under federal, tribal, state or local law?

(3) Specialized knowledge or experience of the person seeking to qualify for the LLP.

Do you have any specialized knowledge or experience related to the *property* or nearby properties? For example, are you involved in the same line of business as the current or former *occupants* of the *property* or an adjoining *property* so that you would have specialized knowledge of the chemicals and processes used by this type of business?

(4) Relationship of the purchase price to the fair market value of the *property* if it were not contaminated.

Does the purchase price being paid for this *property* reasonably reflect the fair market value of the property? If you conclude that there is a difference, have you considered whether the lower purchase price is because contamination is known or believed to be present at the property?

(5) Commonly known or *reasonably ascertainable* information about the *property*.

Are you aware of commonly known or *reasonably ascertainable* information about the *property* that would help the *environmental professional* to identify conditions indicative of releases or threatened releases? For example,

- (a) Do you know the past uses of the property? If so, please explain.
- (b) Do you know of specific chemicals that are present or once were present at the *property*? If so, please explain.
- (c) Do you know of spills or other chemical releases that have taken place at the *property*? If so, please explain.
- (d) Do you know of any environmental cleanups that have taken place at the *property*? If so, please explain.
- (6) The degree of obviousness of the presence or likely presence of contamination at the property, and the ability to detect the contamination by appropriate investigation. Based on your knowledge and experience related to the property, are there any obvious indicators that point to the presence or likely presence of contamination at the property? If so, please explain.



SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC. Agreement for Professional Services

This Agreement is between Grand Rapids Economic Development (Client) and Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. (Consultant).

This Agreement authorizes and describes the scope, schedule, and payment conditions for Consultant's work on the Project described as: ALTA Survey North of Library (part of Blocks 20 & 21, plat of Grand Rapids)

Client's Aut	horized Representative:	Rob Mattei	
Address:	420 N Pokegama Avenue		
-	Grand Rapids, MN 55744	1	
Telephone:	218.326.7622	e-mail:	rmattei@ci.granad-rapids.mn.us
Project Man	ager: Dennis Warner		
	AT NEE CALL A		

Auur cos.				
	Grand Rapids, MN 55744			
Telephone:	218.322.4518	e-mail:	dwarner@sehinc.com	

Scope: The Basic Services to be provided by Consultant as set forth herein is provided subject to the attached General Conditions of the Agreement for Professional Services (General Conditions Rev. 12.07.15), which is incorporated by reference herein and subject to Exhibits attached to this Agreement.

ALTA Survey -to include Table A items 1,2,3,4,6a,6b,8,11,13,14,16,17 and 19.

Payment: The total fee for the above services is \$5,850.00 on a lump sum basis, including expenses and equipment.

If this agreement is acceptable, please execute and keep one copy for your records, returning 1 copy to SEH.

This Agreement for Professional Services, attached General Conditions, Exhibits and any Attachments (collectively referred to as the "Agreement") supersedes all prior contemporaneous oral or written agreements and represents the entire understanding between Client and Consultant with respect to the services to be provided by Consultant hereunder. In the event of a conflict between the documents, this document and the attached General Conditions shall take precedence over all other Exhibits unless noted below under "Other Terms and Conditions". The Agreement for Professional Services and the General Conditions (including scope, schedule, fee and signatures) shall take precedence over attached Exhibits. This Agreement may not be amended except by written agreement signed by the authorized representatives of each party.

Other Terms and Conditions: Other or additional terms contrary to the General Conditions that apply solely to this project as specifically agreed to by signature of the Parties and set forth herein: None

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc.	Rob Mattei, GREDA Director
By: Dennis A. Warm	By:
Dennis Warner Title: Professional Land Surveyor	Title:
Date: 7-19-2016	Date:
SEH: RAP	
Bob Beaver Title: Principal	
Date: 7/19/16	

r:\grad\survey proposals\2016\greda.docx

SECTION I - SERVICES OF CONSULTANT

A. General

1. Consultant agrees to perform professional services as set forth in the Agreement for Professional Services or Supplemental Letter Agreement ("Basic Services"). Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the Client or the Consultant. The Consultant's services under this Agreement are being performed solely for the Client's benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any claim against the Consultant because of this Agreement or the performance or nonperformance of services hereunder.

B. Schedule

- Unless specific periods of time or dates for providing services are specified, Consultant's obligation to render services hereunder will be for a period which may reasonably be required for the completion of said services.
- 2. If Client has requested changes in the scope, extent, or character of the Project or the services to be provided by Consultant, the time of performance and compensation for Consultant's services shall be adjusted equitably. The Client agrees that Consultant is not responsible for damages arising directly or indirectly from delays beyond Consultant's control. If the delays resulting from such causes increase the cost or the time required by Consultant to perform its services in accordance with professional skill and care, then Consultant shall be entitled to a equitable adjustment in schedule and compensation.

C. Additional Services

- If Consultant determines that any services it has been directed or requested to perform are beyond the scope as set forth in the Agreement or that, due to changed conditions or changes in the method or manner of administration of the Project, Consultant's effort required to perform its services under this Agreement exceeds the stated fee for Basic Services, then Consultant shall promptly notify the Client regarding the need for additional services. Upon notification and in the absence of a written objection, Consultant shall be entitled to additional compensation for the additional services, and to an extension of time for completion of additional services absent written objection by Client.
- Additional services shall be billed in accord with agreed upon rates, or if not addressed, then at Consultant's standard rates.

D. Suspension and Termination

- If Consultant's services are delayed or suspended in whole or in part by Client, or if Consultant's services are delayed by actions or inactions of others for more than 60 days through no fault of Consultant, then Consultant shall be entitled to either terminate its agreement upon 7 days written notice or, at its option, accept an equitable adjustment of rates and amounts of compensation provided for elsewhere in this Agreement to reflect reasonable costs incurred by Consultant.
- This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon seven days written notice should the other party fail substantially to perform in accordance with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the termination.
- 3. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon thirty days' written notice without cause. All provisions of this Agreement allocating responsibility or liability between the Client and Consultant shall survive the completion of the services hereunder and/or the termination of this Agreement.
- In the event of termination, Consultant shall be compensated for services performed prior to termination date, including charges for expenses and equipment costs then due and all termination expenses.

SECTION II - CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES

A. General

- The Client shall, in proper time and sequence and where appropriate to the Project, at no expense to Consultant, provide full information as to Client's requirements for the services provided by Consultant and access to all public and private lands required for Consultant to perform its services.
- 2. The Consultant is not a municipal advisor and therefore Client shall provide its own legal, accounting, financial and insurance counseling and other special services as may be required for the Project. Client shall provide to Consultant all data (and professional interpretations thereof) prepared by or services performed by others pertinent to Consultant's services, including but not limited to, previous reports; sub-surface explorations; laboratory tests and inspection of samples; environmental assessment and impact statements, surveys, property descriptions; zoning, deed and other fand use restrictions; asbuilt drawings, electronic data base and maps. The costs associated with correcting, creating or recreating any data that is provided by the Client that contains inaccurate or unusable information shall be the responsibility of the Client.
- 3. Client shall provide prompt written notice to Consultant whenever the Client observes or otherwise becomes aware of any changes in the Project or any defect in Consultant's services. Client shall promptly examine all studies, reports, sketches, opinions of construction costs, specifications, drawings, proposals, change orders, supplemental agreements and other documents presented by Consultant and render the necessary decisions and instructions so that Consultant may provide services in a timely manner.
- 4. Client shall require all utilities with facilities within the Client's Project site to locate and mark said utilities upon request, relocate and/or protect said utilities as determined necessary to accommodate work of the Project, submit a schedule of the necessary relocation/protection activities to the Client for review and comply with agreed upon schedule. Consultant shall not be itable for damages which arise out of Consultant's reasonable reliance on the information or services furnished by utilities to Client or others hired by Client.
- 5. Consultant shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of information or services furnished by the Client or others employed by the Client and shall not be liable for damages arising from reasonable rellance on such materials. Consultant shall promptly notify the Client if Consultant discovers that any information or services furnished by the Client is in error or is inadequate for its purpose.

SECTION III - PAYMENTS

- A. Invoices
 - 1. Undisputed portions of invoices are due and payable within 30 days. Client must notify Consultant in writing of any disputed items within 15 days from receipt of invoice. Amounts due Consultant will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) for invoices 30 days past due. Consultant reserves the right to retain instruments of Service until all invoices are paid in full. Consultant will not be liable for any claims of loss, delay, or damage by Client for reason of withholding services or instruments of Service until all invoices are paid in full. Consultant shall be entilled to recover all reasonable costs and disbursements, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred in connection with collecting amounts owed by Client.
 - 2. Should taxes, fees or costs be imposed, they shall be in addition to Consultant's agreed upon compensation.
 - Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Consultant may pursue collection of past due involces without the necessity of any mediation proceedings.

SECTION IV - GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

A. Standards of Performance

- The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by Consultant under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of Consultant's profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. Consultant makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with its services.
- Consultant neither guarantees the performance of any Contractor nor assumes responsibility for any Contractor's failure to furnish and perform the work in accordance with its construction contract or the construction documents prepared by Consultant. Client acknowledges Consultant will not direct,
- supervise or control the work of construction contractors or their subcontractors at the site or otherwise. Consultant shall have no authority over or responsibility for the contractor's acts or omissions, nor for its means, methods or procedures of construction. Consultant's services do not include review or evaluation of the Client's, contractor's or subcontractor's safety measures, or job site safety or furnishing or performing any of the Contractor's work.
- 3. If requested in the scope of a Supplemental Letter Agreement, then Consultant may provide an Opinion of Probable Construction Cost. Consultant's Opinions of Probable Construction Cost provided for herein are to be made on the basis of Consultant's experience and qualifications and represent Consultant's best judgment as a professional generally familiar with the industry. However, since Consultant has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or service furnished by others, or over the Contractor's methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, Consultant cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual construction cost will not vary from Opinions of Construction Cost prepared by Consultant. If Client wishes greater assurance as to probable Construction Cost, Client shall employ an independent cost estimator or negotiate additional services and fees with Consultant.

B. Indemnity for Environmental Issues

- Consultant is not a user, generator, handler, operator, arranger, storer, transporter or disposer of hazardous or toxic substances, therefore the Client agrees to hold harmless, indemnify and defend Consultant and Consultant's officers, directors, subconsultant(s), employees and agents from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, liability and costs, including but not limited to costs of defense, arising out of or in any way connected with, the presence, discharge, release, or escape of hazardous or toxic substances, pollutants or contaminants of any kind at the site.
- C. Limitations on Consultant's Liability
 - 1. The Client hereby agrees that to the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant's total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, or damages whatsoaver arising out of or in any way related to the Project or this Agreement from any cause or causes including, but not limited to, Consultant's negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or breach of warranty shall not exceed one million dollars (\$1,000,000). In the event Client desires limits of Ilability in excess of those provided in this paragraph, Client shall advise Consultant in writing and agree that Consultant's fee shall increase by 1% for each additional million dollars of Ilability limits, up to a maximum limit of Ilability of five million dollars (\$5,000,000).
 - 2. Neither Party shall be liable to the other for consequential damages, including, without limitation, lost rentals, increased rental expenses, loss of use, loss of income, lost profit, financing, business and reputation and for loss of management or employee productivity, incurred by one another or their subsidiaries or successors, regardless of whether such damages are foreseeable and are caused by breach of contract, willful misconduct, negligent act or omission, or other wrongful act of either of them.
 - It is intended by the parties to this Agreement that Consultant's services shall not subject Consultant's employees, officers or directors to any personal legal exposure for the risks associated with this Agreement. The Client agrees that as the Client's sole

and exclusive remedy, any claim, demand or suit shall be directed and/or asserted only against Consultant, and not against any of Consultant's individual employees, officers or directors, and Client knowingly waives all such claims against Consultant individual employees, officers or directors.

D. Assignment

 Neither party to this Agreement shall transfer, sublet or assign any rights under, or interests in, this Agreement or claims based on this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. Any assignment in violation of this subsection shall be null and void.

SECTION V - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- A. Mediation
 - Any dispute between Client and Consultant arising out of or relating to this Agreement or services provided under this Agreement, (except for unpaid involces which are governed by Section 10), shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation as a precondition to litigation unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. Mediation shall occur within 60 days of a written demand for mediation unless Consultant and Client mutually agree otherwise.

B. Litigation - Choice of Venue and Jurisdiction

 Any dispute not settled through mediation shall be settled through litigation in the state where the Project at issue is located.

SECTION VI - INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

A. Proprietary Information

- All documents, including reports, drawings, calculations, specifications, CADD materials, computers software or hardware or other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement are Consultant's Instruments of Service ("Instruments of Service") and Consultant retains all ownership interests in Instruments of Service, including all available copyrights.
- 2. Consultant shall retain all of its rights in its proprietary information including, without limitation, its methodologies and methods of analysis, ideas, concepts, expressions, inventions, know how, methods, techniques, skills, knowledge and experience possessed by Consultant prior to, or acquired by Consultant during, the performance of this Agreement and the same shall not be deemed to be Work Product or Work for Hire and Consultant shall not be restricted in any way with respect thereto.

B. Client Use of Instruments of Service

- Provided that Consultant has been paid in full for its services, Client shall have the right in the form of a license to use Instruments of Service resulting from Consultant's efforts on the Project. Consultant shall retain full rights to electronic data and the drawings, specifications, including those in electronic form, prepared by Consultant and its subconsultants and the right to reuse component information contained in them in the normal course of Consultant's professional activities. Consultant shall be deemed to be the author of such Instruments of Service, electronic data or documents, and shall be given appropriate credit in any public display of such Instruments of Service.
- Records requests or requests for additional copies of Instruments of Services outside of the scope of services are available to Client subject to Consultant's current rate schedule.

C. Reuse of Documents

 All Instruments of Service prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by the Client or others on extensions of the Project or on any other Project. Any reuse of the Instruments of Service without written consent or adaptation by Consultant for the specific purpose Intended will be at the Client's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Consultant; and the Client shall release Consultant from all claims arising from such use. Client shall also defend, indemnify and hold harmless Consultant from all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys' fees arising out of or resulting from reuse of Consultant documents without written consent.